Medi-Cal Administrative Activities/Targeted Case Management Local Governmental Agency Consortium (MAA/TCM LGA Consortium)

BY-LAWS

Revised June 2014

Article I NAME AND PURPOSE OF ASSOCIATION

Section 1- Name

The Consortium shall be known as Medi-Cal Administrative Activities/Targeted Case Management Local Governmental Agency (LGA) Consortium and may also be known as MAA/TCM LGA Consortium.

Section 2- Purpose

The purpose of this Consortium shall be to identify system-wide issues of California health policy and administration related to MAA/TCM and to advise and recommend policy positions, management strategies, and other actions which address the identified issues.

- a. The Consortium shall focus on issues that have significant programmatic and fiscal impact on the MAA/TCM program.
- b. The Consortium shall lead policy development efforts and shall work collaboratively with other organizations, which share common concerns.

Article II MEMBERSHIP

Section 1- Members

- a. A Local Governmental Agency (LGA) is defined as a county or chartered city. Each California county and each California chartered city shall be eligible for membership in the Consortium. Membership is contingent on the annual payment of participation fees.
- b. Each LGA may have one MAA/TCM Coordinator or designee to serve as the LGA representative.

Section 2- Voting

a. Each LGA shall have one vote on Consortium business matters.

b. When the vote is conducted at a LGA Consortium meeting, the vote shall be decided by a majority of a quorum of members present. Proxy is permissible.

Section 3- Other Participants

Notwithstanding any other provisions in these Articles, the Consortium shall allow nonmembers to attend meetings, make presentations, and participate in discussion on matters of interest to the Consortium. The Consortium reserves the right to close the Consortium meeting to non-members at any time.

Article III OFFICERS, HOST ENTITY, LGA CONSULTANT, AND THEIR DUTIES

Section 1- Co-Chair

- a. Shall call and preside over all LGA Consortium meetings and Executive Committee meetings.
- b. Shall serve as the spokespersons for the Consortium with other organizations, entities, etc.
- c. Shall have the authority to manage contracts on behalf of the Consortium.
- d. Shall have the authority to manage staff on behalf of the Consortium.
- e. Shall report to the membership on Consortium business, including, but not limited to, meeting with State Department of Health Services staff.
- f. Shall perform other duties as are necessary and customary for the office of the Co-Chair.
- g. Shall be compensated \$15,000 each annually for services rendered. Payment shall be issued in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year and paid directly to the LGA upon receipt of the invoice.

Section 2 – Members at Large

- a. Shall participate as members of the Executive Committee.
- b. Shall attend LGA Consortium meetings.
- c. Shall perform other duties as are necessary and customary for the office of Member at Large.

d. Shall be compensated \$10,000 each annually for services rendered. Payment shall be issued in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year and paid directly to the LGA upon receipt of the invoice.

Section 3- Host Entity

- a. Shall have the authority to bill for and collect participation fees, approve payments for authorized expenditures, account for and report on all financial transactions and the financial condition of the Consortium to the membership in the manner prescribed by the Executive Committee.
- b. Shall recommend changes in the participation fee structure and amounts, in a fiscally prudent manner, to the Executive Committee.
- c. Shall establish an interest-bearing trust fund for the deposit of LGA participation fees. Accrued interest shall be posted to and remain part of the trust fund. A \$100,000 reserve shall be maintained in the trust fund.
- d. Shall recommend a draft Consortium Budget to the Executive Committee within a reasonable time frame for LGA Consortium approval.
- e. Shall perform such other duties as directed by the Consortium or Co-Chairs in the best interest of the Consortium.
- f. Shall participate as a member of the Executive Committee.
- g. Shall attend LGA Consortium meetings.
- h. Shall function as keeper of record for current By-laws.
- i. The Host Entity shall be approved bi-annually by the Consortium membership.
- j. Shall be compensated \$60,000 annually for services rendered. Payment shall be issued in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year.

Section 4- LGA Consultant

- a. Shall keep, or cause to be kept, the full records of all proceedings of the Consortium.
- b. Shall assist the Host Entity in preparing recommended changes in the participation fee structure and amounts.
- c. Shall assist the Host Entity in preparing a draft Consortium budget.

- d. Shall perform such other duties as directed by the Consortium membership or the Co-Chairs in the best interest of the Consortium.
- e. Shall attend the LGA Consortium and Executive Committee meetings.
- f. Shall comply with the scope of work as contained within the LGA Consultant contract.

Article IV TERMS OF OFFICERS

Section 1- Election of Officers

- a. The Co-Chairs shall serve two (2) years each. The Co-Chairs will be elected on alternate years and may be re-elected as a Co-Chair.
- b. The two Members at Large shall serve one (1) year terms. Members at Large will be elected annually and may be re-elected as Members at Large.
- c. Each year at the May LGA Consortium meeting, elections for the offices of Co-Chair and Members at Large will be held. Any member, as defined in Article II Section 1, is eligible for nomination. Any member who is a paid consultant related to MAA/TCM is not eligible for nomination for Co-Chair or Member at Large. The elected officers will assume office July 1.
- d. Should a Co-Chair or Member at Large position become vacant prior to the expiration of the term, a new officer will be elected by the membership at the next LGA Consortium meeting. The Executive Committee may recommend to the LGA Consortium that the vacant position not be filled if the remainder of the term is less than six months.

Section 2- Recall Elections

Any Consortium officer may be recalled.

- a. The Executive Committee shall schedule a recall election within thirty (30) days of receipt of a petition requesting that a recall election be held. The petition must bear signatures of one third plus one of the Consortium membership.
- b. Voting shall be conducted for recall of officer of the Consortium consistent with Article II, Section 2 above.

Article V

Section 1- Executive Committee

- a. The Executive Committee shall review all policy matters governing the Consortium and may formulate positions and/or represent the Consortium when a Consortium full membership vote is impractical. Actions taken by the Executive Committee shall be presented to the full membership at the first LGA Consortium meeting following such actions, as may be appropriate.
- b. The Co-Chairs of the Consortium shall share responsibility as Chair of the Executive Committee.
- c. The Executive Committee shall be comprised of no more than five (5) members.

 Mandatory members shall include the Co-Chairs, the two (2) Members at Large, and the Host Entity.
- d. Executive Committee meetings shall be held monthly.
- e. The Executive Committee shall approve and submit to the Consortium for a vote, a draft annual budget and participation fee schedule by the beginning of each fiscal year, contingent on the receipt of required financial data.
- f. A majority of the Executive Committee members shall constitute a quorum for the conduct of business.
- g. Members who are not on the Executive Committee may attend Executive Committee meetings. The Executive Committee reserves the right to close Executive Committee meeting to non-Executive Committee members at any time.

Section 2- Other Committees

Additional committees, work groups, and task forces may be convened, as necessary, for the proper transaction of Consortium business, to be determined by the Co-Chairs, Executive Committee, and/or Consortium membership. Persons who are paid consultants related to MAA/TCM may attend committee meetings by LGA invitation and the approval of the Executive Committee.

Article VI MEETINGS

Section 1- Meetings of the Consortium

- a. LGA Consortium meetings will be held at least quarterly.
- b. A statewide LGA Consortium conference may be held annually
- c. Committee meetings shall be held as specified in Article V above.

Section 2- Meeting Call and Notice

- a. Either of the Co-Chairs or a majority vote of the Executive Committee may call a LGA Consortium meeting.
- b. Notice of LGA Consortium meetings shall be sent to the LGA Coordinators at least three (3) weeks prior to the meeting date.
- c. Agendas for the LGA Consortium meetings shall be sent to the LGA Coordinators at least two (2) weeks prior to the meeting date.

Section 3- Procedures

a. A quorum for LGA Consortium meetings shall consist of those LGA representatives in attendance at the meeting, provided that all member LGAs have been notified in accordance with Section 2(b) of this Article.

Article VII

Section 1- Initiation of Proposed Amendments

- a. Any LGA representative may propose an amendment to these By-laws by submitting the proposal, in writing, to the Executive Committee.
- b. The Executive Committee shall submit the proposed amendment to the Consortium for a vote.

Section 2- Notice; Voting; Effective Date

- a. LGA representatives shall receive a copy of any proposed amendment at least ten (10) days prior to voting on the proposed amendment.
- b. Voting shall be conducted for amendments to the Consortium By-laws consistent with Article II, Section 2 above.

c. By-laws amendments approved by the Consortium shall be effective immediately and signed and dated by the Co-Chairs.

Co-Chair

Date T

o-Chair

Date